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N\
VISION STATEMENT

To transform the company into a modern and dynamic paper
converting company by utilizing experience of the team of
professionals to play a meaningful role on sustainable basis
in the economy of PaRistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

To provide quality products to customers and explore new
clients to promote sales of the company through good
governance and encourage a sound and dynamic team, so as
to achieve best prices of products of the company for sustainable
growth and prosperity of the company.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 60t Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held
on Tuesday , October 25,2022 at 11: 30 am at the Registered Office of the Company at D/58, Estate Avenue,
S.I.T.E., Karachi to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. Toapprove the minutes of last Annual General Meeting.

2. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022
together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

3. To consider and approve the payment of Interim cash dividend, already paid to the shareholders for the
year ended June 30, 2022 @ 25% i.e. Rs.2.5% (per ordinary share of Rs. 10 each) as recommended by
the Board of Directors.

4. To appoint Auditors for the year 2022-23 and to fix their remuneration.

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Karachi Safia Khursheed
Dated: September 22, 2022 Company Secretary
NOTES:

1. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, October 18, 2022 to Tuesday,
October 25, 2022 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the office of our Share Registrar, M/s. F.D.
Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd, 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, LI. Chundrigar Road, Karachi 74000, at the
close of business on Monday, October 17, 2022 will be treated in time for the above entitlement.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend, speak and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member
as his/her proxy to attend, speak and vote in his / her instead. The proxies to be effective must be in writing
and must be received by the Company's Registered Office not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

w

. For Attending the Meeting:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per Regulations, shall authenticate his/her
identity by showing his/her original Computerized National Identity card (CNIC) or original Passport at the
time of attending the meeting.

ii. Members registered on CDC are also requested to bring their particulars, .D. numbers and account numbers
in CDS.

iii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature

of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of meeting.

=Y

. For Appointing Proxies:

i. In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are in
group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the proxy
form as per the above requirement.

ii. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, address and CNIC Numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

iii. Attested copies of CNIC or Passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy
form.
iv. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original Passport at the time of the meeting.

v. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen signature

shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

5. Zakat Declaration Certificate
Members who desire to stop deduction of Zakat from their dividends may submit a declaration on non-judicial
stamp paper duly signed as required under the law (if not submitted earlier).
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6. Submission of CNIC Copy (MANDATORY)

Pursuant to the directives of the Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan CNIC number is mandatory
required to be mentioned on dividend warrants, Shareholders are therefore requested to submit copy of their
valid CNIC (only Physical Shareholders) if not provided earlier to the M/s. F.D Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd
(The Share Registrar). The Corporate Entities are requested to provide their National Tax Number (NTN).
Please quote Folio Number with the copy of CNIC/NTN details. In case of non-receipt of valid CNIC the
Company would be unable to comply with SRO 831(1)/2012 dated July 5, 2012 of SECP read with SRO
19(1)/2014 January 10, 2014. Please note that no dividend will be payable unless CNIC number is printed on
the dividend warrants, failure to provide the same would constrain the Company to withhold dispatch of
dividend warrants.

7. Payment of Cash Dividend Through Electronic Mode (Mandatory)

Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 provides that in case of a listed company, any cash dividend declared
by the company must be paid electronically directly into the bank accounts of entitled shareholders.
Therefore, all shareholders are requested to fill in Dividend Mandate Form available on Company’s website
i.e. http://www.pakpapercom  and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the
Company M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd in case of physical shares. In case shares are held in CDC then
Dividend Mandate Form must be submitted directly to shareholder's broker/ participant/CDC account
services. In case of non-submission of IBAN, the Company will withhold the payment of dividends under
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

8. Change of Address and Quote Folio No. In Correspondence :

Members are also requested to notify any change in address immediately. The shareholders are further
requested to quote their folio number in all correspondence with the Company and at the time of attending
the Annual General Meeting.

9. Unclaimed Dividends and Shares (Important & Mandatory)

Shareholders who could not collect their dividend /physical shares are advised to contact the Share Registrar
of the Company to collect/inquire about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. Please note that in
compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all
dividends unclaimed for a period of three (3) years from the date due and payable shall be deposited to the
credit of the Federal Government and in case of shares, shall be delivered to the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

10. Circulation of Notice of Meeting & Annual Accounts

11

With reference to S.R.0. 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 issued by SECP; shareholders have an option
to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of Annual General Meeting through email.
Shareholders of the Company are requested to give their consent to the Company's Registered Office to update
our record if they wish to receive Annual Audited Financial Statements and Notice of General Meeting through
email. However, if shareholders, in addition, request for hard copy of Audited Financial Statements, the same
shall be provided free of cost within seven [7] days of receipt of such written request.

Placement of Financial Accounts on Website
Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2021 have been placed on
Company's website at www.pakpaper.com

12. Deduction of Income Tax on Dividend

Members are informed that the rates of deduction of income tax under Section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001 from dividend payment, have been revised in case of person not appearing in Active Tax
Payer List (ATL) which are as under:

i. Rate of tax deduction for shareholders appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) -15%
ii. Rate of tax deduction for shareholders not appearing in Active Taxpayer List (ATL) -30%

To enable the company to make tax deduction on the amount of the cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%,
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax Payers List (ATL) provided on the website of FBR
despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into ATL. Further,
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according to clarification received from FBR, withholding tax will be determined separately on ‘Filer/Non-filer’
status of Principle shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding proportions. Therefore, all
shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide shareholding proportions of Principle shareholder
and joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar in writing as follows:

Company Folio/CDC Total Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
Name Account # Shares Name and Shareholding | Name Shareholding
CNIC Proportion and Proportion
(No. of CNIC (No. of Shares)
Shares)

The corporate shareholders having CDC accounts are required to have their National Tax Numbers (NTN)
updated with their respective participants, whereas corporate physical shareholders should send a copy of
their NTN certificate to the company or our Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (Pvt) Ltd. The
shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificate, as the case may be, must quote company name and their
respective folio numbers.

13. Requirement of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018

Members can exercise their right to vote by means of postal ballot i.e., by post or through electronic mode
subject to the requirements of Section 143 -145 of Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies
(Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018.

. Consent for Video Conference Facility/ Online Participation in AGM :

Pursuant to Section 132 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017 If, the Company receives consent from members
holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the
meeting through video conference at least seven (7) days prior to date of the meeting, the Company will
arrange video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that city. Please fill the
following and submit to the Registered Office of the Company seven (7) days before holding of the Annual
General Meeting.

1/We, of , being a member of the Pakistan Paper Products Limited,
holder of Ordinary Share(s) as per Register CDC/ Folio no. hereby opt for video
conference facility at ;

15. Conversion of Physical shares into Book Entry form :

Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing Company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book entry form in the manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
Commission, within a period not exceeding four years from the commencement of the Companies Act, 2017.

The shareholders having physical shares are encouraged to convert their physical shares into book entry
form by depositing shares into Central Depository Company Pakistan Limited by opening CDC sub account
with any broker or investor accounts directly with CDC,
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OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS
Rupees in Thousand
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
[HISTORICAL TRENDS
Trading results
Turnover 1,365,460 1,224,655 1,021,263 969,748 868,871 724,393
Sales - Net 1,234,186 1,092,962 913,310 875439 788,229 659,935
Gross Profit 189,157 160,813 96,911 99,271 129,719 124,258
Profit before tax 90,427 97,014 21,616 23,968 64,459 73,059
Taxation 28,683 26,449 6,045 5,994 14,391 12,227
Profit after tax 61,744 70,565 15,570 17,975 50,068 60,832
Dividend
Cash Dividend 25.0% 50.0% 12.50% 10% 25% 55%
Stock Dividend 33.33%
Cash Dividend Value 20,000 40,000 10,000 8,000 15,000 33,000
Stock Dividend Value - - - - 20,000 -
Dividend Payout 32.39% 56.69% 64.22% 44.51% 69.90% 54.25%
Financial Position
Total Assets 1,600,646 1,398,431 1,376,352 1,234,181 870,670 843,795
Paid up Capital 80,000 80,000 80,000 80,000 60,000 60,000
Reserves 936,558 919,015 875,050 867,258 574,269 597,018
Working capital 308,128 322,419 207,876 247,273 247,727 223,235
Current Ratio 1.77 2.19 1.61 222 293 3.03
[KEY INDICATORS
Operating
Gross Profit 15.33% 14.71% 10.61% 11.34% 16.46% 18.83%
Profit before tax 7.33% 8.88% 2.37% 2.74% 8.18% 11.07%
Profit after tax 5.00% 6.46% 1.70% 2.05% 6.35% 9.22%
Return on Equity 6.07% 7.06% 1.63% 1.75% 7.89% 9.26%
Return on Assets 3.86% 5.05% 1.13% 1.46% 5.75% 7.21%
Valuation
Earning per share (pre tax) 11.30 12.13 2.70 3.00 10.74 12.18
Earning per share (post tax) 772 8.82 1.95 225 8.34 10.14
Breakup value per share 127.07 124.88 119.38 118.41 105.71 109.50
Asset utilisation
Inventory turnover ratio 372 3.79 4.07 4.62 4.59 4.31
Total assets turnover ratio 0.77 0.78 0.66 0.71 0.91 0.78
Production
Exercise Books (Groose) 59,455 45225 50,466 55,708 57,990 56,176
Amonia Paper (Rolls 10 yds) 8,941 17,875 17,093 26,939 32 461 33,187
Pro-Labels (Sq. Meter) 5,591,118 6,229,624 5,421,736 5,276,473 5104755 4,336,380
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Statement of Value Added and its Distribution

Wealth Generated
Total revenue inclusive of sales tax & other income

Bought-in-material & services

Wealth Distributed
To Employees

Salaries, wages, benefits & related cost
To Government

Income tax, sales tax & workers' fund
To Providers of Capital

Dividend to share holders

Markup on borrowed funds

Retained in Business
Depreciation, Amortization & retained profit

Wealth Distribution FY-2022

53% 16%

To Government

To Employees

To Providers of Capital Retained in Business

2022 2021
Rupees in % Rupees in %
thousand thousand
1,368,993 1,233,231
757,641 648,533
611,352 100.00% 584,698 100.00%
97,405 15.93% 82,283 14.07%
160,283 26.22% 153,589 26.27%
20,000 3.27% 40,000 6.84%
10,240 1.68% 7,859 1.34%
30,240 47,859
323,425 52.90% 300,968 51.47%
611,352 100.00% 584,698 100.00%

Wealth Distribution FY-2021
E9% 14%

| |

8%

To Employees To Government

To Providers of Capital Retained in Business
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RUPEES IN THOUSAND
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Chairman Review

Dear Shareholders

It is a matter of great privilege for me to presentthe Company's Annual Reportand Audited
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 and share with you an update on the
performance of our company.

Business Performance

By the grace of Allah, your Company has had a challenging, but profitable year, in terms of
increase in sales. Turnover during the year ending June 2022 increased by 12.9%, The
profitability of your Company (PAT), however, was low compared to June 2021, at Rs.
61.744 million, which amount to an EPS of Rs. 7.72 compared to an EPS of 8.82 as

of last year,

I compliment the Chief Executive and his team for achieving these results, considering the
fact the business conditions have been extremely volatile and challenging, with constant

increase in financing costs and unprecedented devaluation of PKR against the $.

With increase in overall turnover, your Company could not achieve increase in net profit,
reason being high cost of financing and constant devaluation of PKR against the US$, both
factors contributed to high financing cost of over Rs.32 million, compared to Rs.15.96
million until June 2021.

The Pro-labels business, which is the main profit center of the Company, could not achieve
sale increase due to competition and low customer demand. However Exercise book sales
achieved a healthy growth with an increase of 45% in sales turnover compared to last year.

The current year has lot of challenges to encounter, especially with the floods across the
country, which may adversely affect our economy. The constant devaluation of PKR and
high finance costs, are also of serious concern, these factors post serious challenges for the
management of your Company to maintain Sales and profitability this year

Board Performance
The Board performed its duties and responsibilities diligently by effectively guiding the

Company in its strategic affairs. The Board also played an important role in overseeing the
Management's performance and focusing on major risk areas. The Board was fully involved
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in the budgeting and strategic planning processes. The Board also remained committed to
ensure high standards of Corporate Governance to preserve and maintain stakeholder
value. All Directors, including Independent Directors, fully participated and contributed in
the decision-making process of the Board.

The Company has an independent Internal Audit department and internal audit reports are
presented to the Board Audit Committee on a quarterly basis wherein areas for
improvement are highlighted.

The Board carried out its self-evaluation and identified potential areas for further
improvement in line with global best practices. The main focus remained on strategic
growth, business opportunities, risk management, Board composition and providing
oversight to the Management

Acknowledgement

I thank our CE, all the members of our Board and the employees of our Company who have
worked as a team, to achieve this outstanding performance.

I look forward to continued innovation and all-round effort and vigilance during the
current year and in all times to come, to ensure sustained growth and profitability.

I am also thankful to Shareholders, Customers, Bankers, Regulatory Authorities and
other Stakeholders for their continued support.

ABBAS SAYEED
Chatrman

September 21,2022
Karachi
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors are pleased to present the 60t Annual Report along with the audited
accounts of the company. The Report covers your company s activity for the year ended June 30,
2022 and describes its operational and financial performance along with compliance details.

Operating Performance

By the Grace of Allah your company performed well in spite of the economic crisis that the country is
going through. The top line grew by 11.5% with total turnover reaching a new record high of Rs
1.365 billion. Exercise books led the way with a growth of 45% in sales, while Pro Labels was flat at
-0.35%, and Sensitized paper showed a decline of 27.9% and Photocopy Paper increased by 39.8%.
Our GP increased by 17.63% and operating profit also increased by 14.35% but due to a massive
increase of Finance charges due to Exchange Loss our profit before and after tax fell by 6.79%and
12.48% respectively.

Pro Labels:

The year was a very challenging one for Pro Labels due to the constant devaluation of the currency
which eroded the margins and in addition the exchange loss on import of raw materials led to a
massive decline in Profit before Tax. Sales were relatively flat in terms of PKR as the decline was
only 0.35% but fell by around 10.24% in terms of volume. This was due to decline in demand of
some segments along with the fact that we had very high sales earlier which were a result of the
pent-up demand after opening up of the country from Covid lockdown. The company continues to
maintain its leadership position in this market segment in spite of many new players in the market.
The major concern to us going forward is how the consumption pattern will be in the country and if
it declines or not due to massive inflation. Another concern is that since all the raw materials for Pro
Labels are imported it poses a very serious challenge in terms of the country’s forex position and
tough policies on imports. In addition, last year we faced major supply chain challenges in import of
label stock and other raw material as freight prices climbed to record high levels and there was
major shortage of material worldwide due to the high demand of the post Covid world. This
situation has improved now and freight charges have also come back to normal levels so we are
hoping that this situation will stay stable for this year. The second Gallus machine which was a used
machine arrived to in March 2022 but could not go into full production till June due to many faults
with the machine but they were all rectified by the principal company and Pakistan agent at no
additional cost to us and we are pleased to report that now the machine is running well. With this
addition we are now very well placed to cater to the high-end market of labels in Pakistan. We are
aware that the future is extremely challenging for Pakistan’s economy and we hope that things
improve and the Forex rates stabilize which is very essential for this business.

Exercise Books:

Exercise Books had an extremely robust year with sales rising by 45% to Rs 461 million. This was
mainly because we experienced 2 seasons in one financial year as the schools opened up fully in
August 2021 after Covid lockdown so there was very brisk sales in the first quarter of the year which
continued throughout the year and in final quarter we did seasonal sales for the 2 022-23 academic
year. Another major reason for the increase in PKR value is that through the year we had to
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continuously raise prices of our copies to keep up with the increase in paper prices which like all
commodities experienced very high inflationary pressure. Keeping up with the high demand was
also

a major challenge due to major shortage of paper in the country and while we were still better of
than others due to our dependable supplier Century Paper & Board Mills but they also faced major
challenges in import of pulp and their supply chain was also severely affected. In addition to
institution sales we also experienced very high sales of our own brand copies as our distributor in
Sindh expanded his footprint all over the province and our copies enjoyed very high demand from
Karachi to Rahim Yar Khan. The prospects of our company are closely linked to the overall
macroeconomic situation of the country. The country is passing through a challenging time. The
economic indicators can be much better than they presently are. The recent floods have done
immense damage. In this situation, management is monitoring the situation to limit the damage by
considering all possible mitigating measures,

Sensitized Paper & Plotter Paper:

Sensitized paper sales had a very disappointing paper and decreased by 27.90% and one of the
major reasons being that for the first 3 months of the year we did not have raw material to produce
this product. As we have been pointing out in the past also that this is now a very obsolete product
and there are hardly any suppliers left of raw material so it is very difficult to procure and we think
that very shortly we will also have to cease production as now the demand is also very lo w. Plotter
paper which is it's alternative had a robust year with an increase in sales of 39.18%. Here also we
faced a case of declining margins due to massive increase in price of paper over the last one year
coupled with the PKR devaluation.

Financial Performance

The overall tough economic conditions all over the world and especially in Pakistan had an effect
also on our company, although we feel that we still managed quite well with NP before tax falling by
only 6.79% and due to higher tax our NP after tax fell by 12.48%. This was achieved mainly due to
improved and more efficient utilization of all resources of the company. The major reason for
decline in our profits was due to the massive increase of 103.5% in our Finance costs of which the
major portion was the exchange loss and in addition the interest rate in the country also doubled in
the last one year. If it had not been for this big hit the profits of the company would have been even
higher than last year.

J 22 June, 20 21
Profit before taxation 90,426,949 97,013,786
Taxation (28,683.321) (26,462,248
Profitafter taxation 61,743,628 70,551,538
Earnings per share l2 8.82

Declaration of Dividend

The Board has already announced an interim dividend of 25% and that will be considered as total
dividend forthe year 2021-22.
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Financial Reporting

Let us mention here that this Company’s financial reporting is based on the approved International
Accounting Standards notified by the SECP and also comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 2017,

Manufacturing and Operations

All our resources relating to the manufacturing facilities performed well and achieved positive gains
in efficiencies. We are constantly modernizing and upgrading all our manufacturing facilities to stay
well ahead of the competition.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Being a Public Limited Company, we realize that we have a responsibility to this country and its people
atlarge. In this respect we make donations to needy organizations.

Health

We are committed to demonstrate sound environmental performance by controlling the impact of our
operations and products on the environment and we further endeavor to comply with the applicable
environmental legislation, regulations and standards laid down for pollution control in the country.
Your company is determined to play a role in promoting a better and ecologically friendly future in
Pakistan,

The Board

Pakistan Paper Products Limited has an independent and objective Board, consisting of one working
and rest non-working Directors. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are different and
each has a clearly defined role profile.

Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

¢ We are pleased to report that your company has taken necessary steps to comply with the
provisions of the Code of Corporate Governance as incorporated in the listing regulations of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange.

¢ The financial statements prepared by the management of the Company, present fairly its state of
affairs, the result of the operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

¢ Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

+ Proper books of accounts have been maintained by the Company.

¢ In preparation of financial statements, International Accounting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, have been followed.

¢ There is no significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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¢ The system of internal control is sound in design. The system is being continuously monitored by
Internal Audit and through other such monitoring procedures. The process of monitoring internal

controls will continue as an ongoing process with the objective to further strengthen the controls
and bring improvements in the system.
¢ Detail about taxes is given in the notes to the accounts.

Board & its Committee meetings

During the year four (04) meetings of the Board of Directors (BOD), four (04) Audit Committee (AC)
meetings and One (01) HR &R Committee meetings were held. Attendance by each Director are as
under:

Number of Meeting Attended
Board Audit Human Resource &

Name of Director Meeting P ———— Rt::mune-ranon
ommittee

Mr. Abbas Sayeed 4 3 1
Mr. Abid Sayeed ] 1 1
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed 4 4 -
Mrs. Muleika Sayeed 4 - 1
Mr. Sayeed Imran 4 - 1
Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan 4 4 1
(NIT Nominee)

Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin 4 -

The Directors who could not attend the Board & Committee Meetings and requested for leave were
duly granted leave of absence from the meeting by the Board/Committees in accordance with the law.

Directors’ Training Program

Out of seven Directors of the Company, three Directors are exempt from such certification as they duly
meet the exemption criteria given in the Code. Three have obtained certification under Directors’
Certification Training Program in 2015, 2018 & 2022 respectively. Therefore, over half of the Board

is qualified under the criteria of DTP and exemption criteria as per Code.

The Directors of the Company are adequately trained to perform their duties and are aware of their
powers and responsibilities under the Companies Act, 2017 and the Regulations of PSX Rule book.

Statement of Compliance
The Board has adopted the statement of Compliance. All employees are informed of this statement.
Material Changes

There have been no material changes and the company has not consciously entered into any
commitment that will affect its financial position.
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Code of Business Principles

As a leading Paper converting company, reputation for high ethical standards is central to business
success. Code of Business Principles already developed and communicated and acknowledged by each
Director and employee of the company.

Risk Management

As part of its responsibilities, the Board of Directors have always kept a close watch on socio economic
environment and consequential internal and external risks that might impact the safe and smooth
operations of the Company and remained vigilant in identifying and mitigating risks throughout the
year. The Board identified potential risks, assessed their impact on the Company and formulated
strategies to mitigate any and all foreseeable risks to the business. These strategies were enforced
through Audit Committee to ensure that no gaps remained in risk mitigation.

Risk Assessment

Businesses face numerous uncertainties that might pose threats to its objectives and if not addressed
may cause preventable losses. The Board has carried out vigilant and thorough assessment of both
internal and external risks that the company might face. Rising cost of raw materials is the most
imminent risk facing the company. Devaluation of PKR has made the risk more pronounced. In order
to curb negative impact of this, the company has invested in strategic relationships with its key
international suppliers and ensured timely delivery. Availability of raw materials in another risk that
is faced by the company.

Future Prospects

The future prospects at this time look very bleak as the country is passing through the toughest
economic times in its 75-year history with foreign reserves plummeting at an alarming rate and the
overall world super commodity cycle has played additional havoc on the bleak resources of the
country. The recent floods in the country have done immense damage and will further aggravate the
economic crisis of the country. The future prospects of our company are naturally very closely linked
to the overall macroeconomic situation of the country.

Rest assured that the management is well aware of the situation and is doing its best to tackle this in
the most efficient and timely manner.

Audit Committee

Audit Committee comprises of four members from the Board, two are non-executive directors and
two are independent directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director as required
in the CCG Regulations 2019. The Board of Directors has set out terms of reference for the audit
committee. The audit committee reviews the annual and quarterly financial statements, internal audit
reports and holds its meeting prior to the Board meetings. The committee manages adequately the
system of internal control through internal audit department and review effectiveness of operational
and financial control.
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Human Resource Committee

The Committee consists of four members from the Board; three are non-executive directors and one
is an independent director. The Chairman of the Committee is an independent director. The
Committee reviews and formulates the HR & management policies of the company. The Committee
is also responsible for the remuneration of employees and ensures that it is aligned with the
Company’s business strategy and long-term interests.

Operating and Financial Data

Operating and financial data and key ratios of the company for last six years are annexed.

Auditors

The Board recommended appointment of M/s. Faruq Ali & Co as auditors for the next financial year.
The present auditors, M/s. Faruq Ali & Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible, they have
offered themselves for reappointment.

Pattern of Shareholding

A statement of the pattern of shareholding of certain class of shareholders as at June 30, 2021 whose
disclosure is required under the reporting framework is included in the report.

The shareholding details of directors and their spouse and minor children along with associated
companies, executives, individuals, public sector companies & corporations, Banks, DFIS, NBFIS,
Insurance Companies, Modarabas Joint Stock Companies, Mutual Funds & others along with pattern
of shareholding is annexed.

The Directors, CFO, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouse and minor children
have made no transaction of company’s shares during the year, and also confirm that directors, CEO
and executives do not hold any interest in the shares of the Company other than that disclosed in the
pattern of shareholding.

IN TERMS OF THE REQUIREMENT STATED UNDER
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REGULATION 2019
ositi fthe B

There are seven Board members including two female and five male directors, whereas the
composition of the Board is as follow;

Executive Director 01
Non-Executive Director 04
Independent Director 02
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The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin - Chairperson
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed
Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan

blH R &R tion C itt
Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan - Chairman

Mr. Abbas Sayeed

Mrs. Muleika Sayeed

Mr. Sayeed Imran

Directors’ Remuneration

Through the Articles of the Company, the Board of Directors is authorized to fix remuneration of
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors from time to time. In this regard, the Board of
Directors has developed a Remuneration policy for Executive, Non-executive and Independent
Directors of the company.

Acknowledgements

The Directors are grateful to the valued customers for their continued support. They also appreciate
the support received from Company’s bankers, shareholders and other stakeholders who continue to
repose trust in your company. In addition to this, directors also record their sincere appreciation for
the cooperation received from the Regulators Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)
and Pakistan Stock Exchange-PSX.

All the employees of the company have put in a real teamwork and the results are evident. Directors
congratulate all the employees for their continued performance.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Hlidhuge

ABBAS SAYEED ABID SAYEED

Chairman Chief Excecutive
September 21, 2022
Karachi

60th Annual Report 2022 24




& PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED

Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

For the year ended June 30, 2022.

Pakistan Paper Products Limited (“the Company”) has complied with the requirements of the

Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) in the

following manner:

1. The total number of directors are seven as per following:

a) Male: Five
b) Female: Two

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (“the Board”) is as follows:

Category

Names

Independent Directors

Mr. Shoaib Ahmad Khan (N.I.T Nominee)
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

Non-Executive Directors

Mrs. Muleika Sayeed
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Dr. Asadullah Sayeed
Mr. Sayeed Imran

Executive Director

Mr. Abid Sayeed

Female Directors

Mrs. Muleika Sayeed
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin

3. Two independent directors were appointed and fraction of .33 was not rounded up as the
appointment of female directors is fulfilled and restriction with reference to executive director
is of no breach. Since the directors are seven and non-executive directors are rounded up
therefore independent directors are rounded down to restrict total no. of directors to seven.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company.

The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have

been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and

procedures.
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6.

£

9.

10.

Tl

12.

13.

The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies
along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant
matters have been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Act and these Regulations.

The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and in his absence, by a
director elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of board.

The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

Out of seven, three Directors have obtained certification under Directors’ Training Program in
2015 & 2018 respectively and three Directors are exempt from such certification as they duly
meet the exemption criteria given in the Code. Therefore, over half of the Board is qualified
under the criteria of DTP and exemption criteria as per Code.

The board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied with
relevant requirements of the Regulations.

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board.

The board has reconstituted the following committees after the Election of Directors held on
11-05-2020:

a) Audit Committee
Ms. Aisha Fariel Salahuddin - Chairperson
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Dr. Asadullah Saeed
Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
Mr. Shoaib Ahmed Khan - Chairman
Mr. Abbas Sayeed
Mr. Sayeed Imran
Mrs. Muleika Sayeed
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14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:
Audit Committee Four quarterly meetings held during the financial
year ended June 30, 2022.
Human Resource & One meeting held during the financial year ended
Remuneration Committee June 30, 2022.

The board has set up an effective internal audit function who are considered suitably qualified
and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the
company.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan (ICAP) and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all of
their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP and that they and the partners of the firm
involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with.

Hhinge

ABBAS SAYEED ABID SAYEED

Chairman Chief Excecutive

Karachi: September 21, 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Review Report to the Members of Pakistan Paper Products Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (‘the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of Directors of Pakistan Paper
Products Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the requirements
of Regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of
the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party
transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the
approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit
Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended 30 June 2022.

(‘&“\Q_Liq

Chartered Accountants
Place: Karachi

Dated:
UDIN: CR202210178YnzfdJuS3

Engagement partner: Muhammad Faisal Nini.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the members of Pakistan Paper Products Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Pakistan Paper Products Limited (‘the Company"), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of
financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the
Company's affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit and other comprehensive income, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (‘the Code’) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Following is the key audit matter:

& CO.
Continuation Sheet

S.no.

Key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Our audit procedures to address the Key
Audit Matter included the following:

The Company is engaged in production and sale
of exercise books. pro-labels and sensitized
papers. Revenue recognition policy has been
explained in note 3.16 to the financial statements,
and the related amounts of revenue recognized
during the year are disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.

The Company generates revenue from sale of
goods to domestic customers.

Revenue from sales is recognized when
performance obligation is satisfied as per the
requirements of the International Financial
Reporting Standard (IFRS) 15 — *Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’.

We identified revenue recognition as key audit
matter since it is one of the key performance
indicators of the Company and because of the
potential risk that revenue transactions may not
have been recognized on point in time basis i.e.
when control of goods is transferred to the
customer, in line with the accounting policy
adopted and may not have been recognized in the
appropriate period.

B Considered the appropriateness of revenue
recognition policy and compared it with the
applicable accounting standards;

B Obtained an understanding of revenue from
customers and assessed the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness
of controls around recognition of revenue;

B Checked on sample basis relevant
underlying supporting documents for
ensuring that management has complied
with the revenue recognition criteria as
introduced by IFRS 15;

M Tested timeliness of revenue recognition by
comparing individual sales transactions
before and after the year end to underlying
documents and by checked significant credit
notes issued after year-end; and

® Evaluated the adequacy and appropriateness
of disclosures made in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors® Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors” report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) Proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) The statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with
the books of account and returns;

¢) Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980) was deducted by the
Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under Section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Faisal Nini.

(_&HQLSQ

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Dated:

UDIN: AR202210178v6190ypqG
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021
ASSETS oS e (Rupees)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 4 893,264,648 802,714,130
Intangible assets 5 376,665 517915
Long term deposits 1,135,258 957,258
894,776,571 804,189,303
CURRENT ASSETS
Stores and spares 8,442 309 5.548.216
Stock-in-trade 6 298,736,588 262,468,300
Trade debts - Unsecured, considered good 255,865,910 211,451,703
Advances and other receivables 7 118,237,943 107,382,879
Deposits, advances and short term prepayments 8 18,445,449 2,661,824
Cash and bank balances 9 6,141,564 4,729,141
705,869,763 594,242,063
1,600,646,334 1,398,431.366
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Authorised share capital
15,000,000 (2021: 15.000,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 150,000,000 150,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 10 80,000,000 80,000,000
Revenue reserves 429,167,189 408,423,468
Capital reserve
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 11 507,390,716 510,591,499
1,016,557,905 999,014,967
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred tax liability - Net 12 43,539,407 42,030,458
Deferred liability for staff gratuity 13 19,247,674 17,726,668
Long term loans - Secured 14 107.452,497 58,180,863
Liabilities against assets subject to musharakah financing 15 8,880,000 -
Deferred grant 16 7,227,187 9,655,612
186,346,765 127.593,601
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion shown under current liabilities 17 33,579,591 31,290,851
Short term borrowings - Secured 18 163,316,050 91,452,605
Unclaimed dividend 10,036,413 8,439,427
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 19 190,809,610 140,639.915
397,741,664 271,822,798
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20 - -

1,600,646,334

1,398,431,366

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
7

Y

. . Wit

ABBAS SAYEED Z1A UR REHMAN ABID SAYEED

Chairman Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive
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Sales - Net

Cost of sales
Gross profit

Administrative expenses
Selling and distribution expenses
Other operating expenses

Operating profit

Other income
Finance cost

Profit before taxation
Taxation - Net
Profit for the year

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

ABBAS SAYEED

Chairman

Dol

ZIA UR REHMAN
Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Notes

21

22

23
24
25

26

2022 2021
-—----—---- (Rupees) ~---—----—--
1,234,186,382 1,092,961,922

(1.045,029.690) (932,149,037)

189,156,692 160,812,885
(39,692,808) (32,657,642)
(21,467.593) (16,252,147)
(8,605,114) (7,496,428)
(69,765,515) (56,406,217
119,391,177 104,406,668
3,533,557 8,576,433
(32.497,785) (15.969,315)
90,426,949 97,013,786
(28,683,321) (26,462,248)
61,743,628 70,551,538
7.72 8.82

Wlingrgol

ABID SAYEED
Chief Excecutive
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Notes 2022 2021
i
——————— - (Rupees) —=-=mmmemeemeen

Profit for the year 61,743,628 70,551,538

Other comprehensive loss:

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss:

Remeasurement of defined benefit liability 13 (282,662) (826,151)

Related deferred tax 81,972 239,584
(200,690) (586,567)

Total comprehensive income for the year 61,542,938 69,964,971

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

T, Wi

ABBAS SAYEED ZIA UR REHMAN ABID SAYEED
Chairman Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Balance as on | July 2020

Profit for the year ended 30 June 2021
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

Surplus on revaluation realized on disposal of fixed assets - Net of tax
Transfer to unappropriated profit on account
of incremental depreciation - Net of tax

Transactions with owners:
Final cash dividend (@ 12.5% related to the year ended 30 June 2020
Interim cash dividend (@ 20% related to the period ended 31 December 2020

Balance as at 30 June 2021
Profit for the year ended 30 June 2022

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income for the year

Surplus on revaluation realized on disposal of fixed assets - Net of tax
Transfer to unappropriated profit on account
of incremental depreciation - Net of tax

Transactions with awners:
Final cash dividend (@ 30% related 1o the vear ended 30 June 2021
Interim cash dividend (@ 25% related 10 the period ended 31 December 2021

Balance as at 30 June 2022

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

Issued, Revenue reserves Surplus on
subscribed and i Total revaluation of Total
¢ General | Unappropriated i
paid-up share revenue | property, plant equity
g reserves profit y
capital reserves | and equipment
(Rupees)
80,000,000 143,900,000 A7012,179  360912,179 514,137,817 955,049,996
- - 70,551,538 70,551,538 - 70,551,538
- - (586,56T) (586,567) - (586,567)
- - 69,964,971 69,964,971 - 69,964,971
- 134289 334,289 (334,289) =
3,212,029 3.212,020 (3.212,029) -
- = (10,000,0000 (10,000,000 = (10,000,000)
- - (16,000,000)  {16,000,000) - (16,000,000)
80,000,000 143,900,000 264,523 468 408423 468 510,591,499 999,014,967
- - 61,743,628 01,743,628 - 61,743,628
- - (200.,690) (200,690) (200,690)
- - 61,542,938 61,542,938 - 61,542,938
- - 455,250 455,250 (455.250) -
- - 2745533 2,745,533 (2,745,533) -
- - (24,000,0000 (24,000,000 - (24,000,000)
(20,000,000)  (20,000,000) (20,000,000)
80,000,000 143,900,000 185,267,189 429,167,189 507,390,716 1,016,557,905

ABBAS SAYEED

Chairman

ZIA UR REHMAN
Chief Financial Officer

R, T Hifhgrt

ABID SAYEED
Chief Executive
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations

Payments for:
Income taxes net of refund received
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Gratuity
Finance cost

Net cash inflows / (outflows) from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Addition to tangible assets
Addition to intangibles
Sale proceeds against disposal of fixed assets

Net cash outflows from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long term deposits
Long-term finances obtained
Repayment of long-term finances
Dividend paid
Net cash inflows from financing activities

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

ABBAS SAYEED Z1A UR REHMAN
Chairman Chief Financial Officer

(86,723,464)

Notes 2022 2021
————— --—-- (Rupees) ------------——
30 88,502,969 47,777,090
(22,709,555) (38,190,041)
(2,270917) -
19.3 (5,225,511) (1,162,133)
13.1 (1,729.662) (1.567,776)
(14,810,374) (14,349,727)
41,756,950 (7.492,587)
(130,324,467) (15,111,174)
5 -- (565,000)
2,685,560 385,500
(127.638,907) (15,290,674)
(178,000) (3,250)
95,304,000 76,814,584
(37,292,051) (24,461,525)
(42,403,014) (25,054,957)
15,430,935 27,294,852
(70,451,022) 4,511,591

(91,235,055)

(157,174,486)

(86,723,464)

Hinge

ABID SAYEED
Chief Excecutive
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated and domiciled in Pakistan as a private limited company in July 1962. It was converted
into public company and listed on the Karachi Stock Exchange (now Pakistan Stock Exchange) in July 1964. The main
business activity of the Company is the production and sale of exercise books, pro-labels and sensitized papers.

The geographical location and address of Company's business units including plant is as under:

The registered office of the Company along with its plant is situated at D-58, SITE, Estate Avenue, Karachi.
The Company also have a sales office in Lahore, Pakistan.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

2.2

23

24

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS, the provisions
of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except the obligation in
respect of gratuity fund which is measured at present value and items of property, plant and equipment which are
carried at revalued amounts.

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Company operates. The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency and have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant affect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements are
as follows:
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2.4.1

2.4.2

2.43

2.44

245

24.6

Operating fixed assets, revaluation and depreciation

The Company reviews appropriateness of the rate of depreciation, useful lives and residual values
used in the calculation of depreciation. The estimates of revalued amounts of revalued assets are
based on valuations carried out by a professional valuer. Further, where applicable, an estimate of
the recoverable amount of assets is made for possible impairment on an annual basis. In making
these estimates, the Company uses the technical resources available with the Company. Any change
in the estimates in the future might affect the carrying amount of respective item of property, plant
and equipment, with corresponding effects on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Trade debts and amount due from related parties

The Company reviews its doubtful debts at each reporting date to access whether provision should be
recorded in the profit and loss account. In particular, judgment by management is required in the
estimates of the amount and timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision
required. Such estimates are based on assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may
differ, resulting in future changes to the provisions.

Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management
considers the current income tax laws and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in
the past.

Stock in trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value (NRV) of stock in trade to assess any diminution in
the respective carrying values. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying
amounts of stock in trade and corresponding effect in profit and loss account of those future years.
Net realizable value is determined with respect to estimated selling price less estimated expenditures
to make the sales.

Stores and spares

The Company reviews the net realizable value (NRV) and impairment of stores and spare parts to
assess any diminution in the respective carrying values and wherever required provision for NRV /
impairment is made. The calculation of provision involves the use of estimates with regards to future
estimated use and past consumption along with stores and spares holding period.

Staff retirement benefits

Certain actuarial assumptions have been used as disclosed in these financial statements (note 13) for
the actuarial valuation of unfunded gratuity scheme. Changes in these assumptions in future years
may effect the liability under this scheme in those years.

2.5 Changes in accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements

2.5.1

Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards which became
effective during the year

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30,
2022. These standards, amendments and interpretations are either not relevant to the company's
operations or not expected to have significant impact on the company's financial statements other
than certain additional disclosures.
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Effective Date
(Period
beginning on or
after)

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, 1 January 2021
IFRS 7, 'IFRS 4 and IFRS 16)

Amendment to [FRS 16 "Leases" - Covid-19 related rent concessions extended
beyond 30 June 2021 1 April 2021

2.5.2 Standards, interpretation and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet
effective

The following amendments to accounting standards are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the
Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations' - Reference to the conceptual
framework 1 January 2022

Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment' - Proceeds before
intended use 1 January 2022

‘Amendments to IAS 37 'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets' - Onerous Contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018 - 2020 Cycle (related to IFRS 9,
IFRS 16 and IAS 41) 1 January 2022

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of
liabilities as current or non-current 1 January 2023

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Disclosure of
accounting policies 1 January 2023

Amendment to IAS B 'Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates
and Errors' - Definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023

Amendment to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - deferred tax related to assets and

liabilities arising from a single transaction 1 January 2023
Amendment to IFRS 10 and 28 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Deferred
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture indefinitely

Certain annual improvements have also been made to a number of IFRSs.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 — First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the same
as those applied in earlier period presented.

3.1

3.2

Property, plant and equipment

Item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as asset when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the company and its cost to the company can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment, which qualifies for recognition as an asset, is initially measured at its
cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the item. Subsequent to initial
recognition items of property, plant and equipment are carried at a revalued amount, being its fair value at the
date of the revaluation less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially
from that which would be determined using the fair value at the balance sheet date.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of assets is recognised in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment”, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, in
which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any
decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation of assets is charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the balance, if any, held in the revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment relating to a
previous revaluation of that asset. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s
shareholders. The surplus on revalued assets to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred
tax) is transferred to unappropriated profit.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement
during the financial year in which they are incurred.

Capital work in process is stated at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Depreciation on these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or revaluation of assets, other than leaschold land and capital
work-in-process, over their estimated useful lives, using the reducing balance method, on the basis of rates

specified in note 4. The depreciation for assets acquired or disposed of during the year is charged from the date
of acquisition or up to the date of disposal of such assets respectively.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in income.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the
asset will flow to the Company and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.
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Generally costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. However, costs that are directly associated with identifiable software and have probable
economic benefits exceeding one year, are recognised as an intangible asset. Direct costs include the purchase
cost of software and related overhead cost. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any, thereon.

Intangible asset with a definite useful life is amortized on a straight line basis over its useful life. Amortization
on all additions in intangibles is charged from the month in which the asset is available for use and on disposals
upto the month of disposal. Amortisation charge is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The rate of amortization is disclosed in note 5.

Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value. Cost comprises cost of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the stores and spares to their present location and condition. Cost signifies the
weighted average cost. Average is calculated as each additional shipment is received.

Stoek in trade
Stock in trade is valued at the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.

Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour and those overheads that have been incurred
in bringing the inventories to the present location and condition. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method. Average is calculated as each additional shipment is received.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less cost of
completion and cost necessary to be incurred in order to make the sale.

Financial instruments
3.5.1 Initial measurement of financial asset

The Company classifies its financial assets into following three categories:
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI);
- Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); and
- Measured at amortised cost.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

Subsequent measurement

Debt Investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest /
mark-up income calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss account. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income. On de-
recognition, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss account.
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Equity Investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends
are recognised as income in the statement of profit or loss
account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to the statement of profit or less account,

Financial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains
and losses, including any interest / mark-up or dividend income,
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss account.

Financial assets measured at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

amortised cost the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses. Interest / mark-up income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss account.

Non-derivative financial assets

All non-derivative financial assets are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the
Company becomes party to the respective contractual provisions. Non-derivative financial assets
comprise loans and receivables that are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in active markets and includes trade debts, advances. other receivables and cash and cash
equivalent. The Company derecognises the financial assets when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risk and rewards of ownership of the financial assets are
transferred or it neither transfers nor retain substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset.

3.5.2.1 Trade debts, advances and other receivables

These are classified at amortised cost and are initially recognised when they are
originated and measured at fair value of consideration receivable. These assets are
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss
experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.

3.5.2.2 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash in hand, balances with banks and investments with maturities of less than
three months or less from acquisition date that are subject to insignificant risk of changes
in fair value and short term borrowings availed by the Company. which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised on trade date i.e. date on which the Company becomes
party to the respective contractual provisions. Financial liabilities include mark-up bearing
borrowings and trade and other payables. The Company derecognises the financial liabilities when
contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expire. Financial liability other than at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at fair value less any directly attributable
transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at amortised cost
using effective interest rate method.
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3.5.5

3.5.6

3.5.3.1 Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs

Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, mark-up bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost, while the difference between the cost (reduced for periodic
payments) and redemption value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss account
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying assel are capitalised as part of the cost of the relevant asset.

3.5.3.2 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable
costs, if any, and subsequently measured at amortised costs.

Derivative financial instruments - Other than hedging

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised in the statement of financial
position at estimated fair value with corresponding effect to statement of profit or loss account.
Derivative financial instruments are carried as assets when fair value is positive and liabilities when
fair value is negative.

Derivative financial instruments - Cash flow hedges

When a derivative is designated as a cash flow hedging instrument, the effective portion of changes
in fair value of the derivative is recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
hedging reserve. Any ineffective portion of changes in fair value of derivative is recognised
immediately in the statement of profit or loss account. The amount accumulated in equity is removed
therefrom and included in the initial carrying amount of non-finaneial asset upon recognition of non-
financial asset.

The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques.
These are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial
statements only when the Company has currently legally enforceable right to set-off the recognised
amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and to settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
winding up of the Company or the counter parties.

Trade debts

Trade debts and other receivables are stated initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate method, if applicable, less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for
impairment is established where there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. Trade debts and receivables are written off when
considered irrecoverable.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cheques in hand, balances with banks, term deposits with original
maturity period of three months or less, short term running finances and temporary book overdrawn balances.
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

Staff retirement benefits

The Company's retirement benefit plans comprises of provident fund and gratuity scheme for eligible employees.

Defined contribution plan

The company operates an approved Provident Fund (defined contribution) scheme applicable to all employees.
Monthly contributions are made by the company and the employees equally in accordance with the fund's rules.
The company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payment is available.

Defined benefit plan

The company operates a defined benefit plan comprising a funded gratuity scheme covering all permanent
employees, under which benefits are paid on cessation of employment subject to a minimum qualifying period of
service. An approved gratuity fund trust is established for the management of the gratuity obligation of the
company. Annual contributions are made to the fund based on actuarial recommendations. The actuarial
valuations are carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method. Remeasurement charge which comprises of
actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding interest) are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current tax rates after taking into account tax
credits and rebates available, if any or on turnover at the specified rates or Alternate Corporate Tax as defined in
section 113C of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes
adjustments, where necessary, relating to prior years which arise due to assessment framed / finalized during the
year,

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation: and the
amount has been reliably measured.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognized in the income statements.

Impairment
3.13.1 Financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) in respect of financial
assets measured at amortised cost,
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:
- Debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and
- Other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more
than past due for a reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the
portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the
reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The
maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the Gross carrying
amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering of a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery
from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to
enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due. The adoption of the expected loss approach has not resulted in any material change in
impairment provision for any financial asset.
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3.13.2 Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and
inventories are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount, being higher of value in use
and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets. An impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss,

Government grants and assistance

The benefit of interest rate lower than market rate on borrowings obtained under State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
under Refinance Schemes, is accounted for as a government grant which is the difference between loan received
and the fair value of the loan. The differential amount is recognised and presented in statement of financial
position as deferred government grant.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

The recognition of government grant in profit or loss will be made on a systematic basis over the term of related
loan.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized in the Company’s financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are paid or approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue from
operations of the Company are recognized when the goods are provided, and thereby the performance
obligations are satisfied. The Company's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at the point in time when
the goods are dispatched to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point of time,
as the control has been transferred to the customers. The Company assesses ils revenue arrangements against
specific criteria that must be met before revenue is recognised.

Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
applicable effective interest rate.

Service income
Service income is recognized when related services are rendered.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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3.18 Segment reporting

Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company considers Chief Executive as its CODM who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. On the basis of its internal
reporting structure, the Company considers itself to be a single reportable segment; however, certain information
about the Company’s products, as required by the accounting and reporting standards, is presented in note 35 to
these financial statements.

2022 2021
(Rupees)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets 4.1 893.264.648 802,714,130
4.1 Operating fixed assets
2022
Cost [ revaluation Accumulated depreclathon -
Ndditiens “'_'1"" i
; ; As i Asat Asan 1 July Charge for the Aval value asat | Rate
PARFICULARS 1 July 2020 ""';"":""" (Disposal) | 4 June 2021 020 (On dlapagan) year 30 June 2021 | 30 June 2021 | %
jRepres)
Tungible aviety
Leaschadd lond ARAO00, 100 - - A4, D00, 000 - AR 000,
Buildings on leasshold lond
- Factory A0 79836 S510.906 45,690,742 18,326,712 2318584 200,645,290 15045446 10
- Office 6,472,338 - - 6472338 11 1LB3S - 233,028 2044, 863 4427475 3
Plan and machinery 438,426,630 91,861 K9 = SI02RK219 169645425 - INOTSIST 197,720,682 132.567,537 10
Furniture and fixture 2455426 1082, 680 s 338106 7,062 - 229,896 LALCS 2700148 1D
Fuctory and other oquipment 10,176,753 4,625,204 (2,920) 14,799,067 2,738.460 (1,219) 910,449 1647 080 151977 10
Electric equipment and fitting 6530816 - - 6.530.810 3,323,843 = 481,046 3,804,889 2725927 13
Clomipualers 2041.512 219,700 145,759y 1215453 | 492 K9] 139.510) [LLR ) [ EN) ) RS 30
Vehicles 231492 10,448,917 (5.736.414) 27861730 1772207 (3.985.634) %,533,958 I ),531 15.541,199 20
Musharaka Axvers
Solur power system - 16575471 - 16575471 - - 2043017 243,017 14,531,584 18
101342568 130,024 307 (STRE09%] W17 871042 FI0T1R408 (027.363)  3R016,119  344.707,204 WO, 264,648
1021
Cost / revaluntinng Accomuluted depreciation
Adiditions Wirltten down
" g As it - As wi As ut 1 duly Charge for the Ax wt walue s ot | Rate
PAREYTICULARS 1 July 2020 ""’:_:_"r““‘ ispesal) | 35 une 2021 2020 1O dupial) year 30 June 2021 | 30 June 2021 | %
(Hupecs)
Tangible axveis
Lenschald lnngd AR, 000,000 - 454,000, 000 B - - A4, 000,000
Buildings on leaschold land

- Factory 19,793,671 I, 165 40,179.436 15,920,040 - 2,406,672 18,326,712 21,833,124 "

- Office 6,472,338 - 6ATZAIN 1.566,546 245,292 1811838 4660500 5
Plant and machinery AMATESL TR0 438,426,6M) 140,017 551 0007874 160,645,425 2GR TRLI0S 10
Furniture and fxiure 1,250,380 - - 446,324 - 160,738 BOT, a2 LE4EA6E 10
Fuctory and other equipment 7657213 - 1,969,965 = T8 491 2,738,460 TARI2 W0
Electric equipment and fitting 6334480 - 2,774,348 - 540,495 3.323,843 3206973 15
Commputers 2019,161 (78.649) 1,333,309 (65,527} 1,492,891 S4R621 30
Vehicles 21,34%.22 (045 949} 33,140,237 11038 360 [ &) 2,433 1 12,772 207 10.377.020 30

U0, 34N, 902 (1.027.59K) 1.013.412.568 175,063,527 (7621100 36.397.021 2L TIS 418 202,714,130
-— (Rupees)  —
4.2 The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 22 33,424,424 34,242,674
Administrative expenses 23 2,610,345 1,191,527
Selling and distribution expenses 24 1,981,350 962,820
38,016,119 36,397,021
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4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Depreciation charge is inclusive of the incremental depreciation due to revaluation.

The aggregate book value of all the disposals was less than five million rupees.

The revaluation of property, plant and equipment was carried out as of 01 April 2019 by M/s. Rizvi Associates
(an independent valuer who is located in Karachi) on the basis of there professional assessment of prevailing
market values. The revaluation resulted a surplus amounting to Rs.314.992 million which was incorporated in

these financial statement.

Had there been no revaluation, the net book value of the items of property, plant and equipment would have been

2021

-- (Rupees) -——-—ommmeeeen

191,203

18,637,821
3,105,371
240,068,362
1,701,970
6,445,240
2,665,363
364,152
8,003,735

as follows:
2022
Leaschold land 191,203
Building on leasehold land
- Factory 22,151,673
- Office 2,950,102
Plant and machinery 306,725,979
Furniture and fixture 2,569,398
Factory and other equipment 10,264,159
Electric equipment and fittings 16,788,336
Computers 436,708
Vehicles 14,164,322
376,241,880

281.183.217

Leaschold land of the Company and building thereon is situated at Estate Avenue, SITE, Karachi. This
comprises of two plots of land bearing plot no. D-57 and D-58 with an accumulated area of 2.42 acres.

The forced sale value of the revalued property, plant and equipment owned by the Company had been assessed at

Rs. 656.264 million.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Software license 5.1 376,665 517,915
5.1 Movement of intangible assets
Cost:
Cost as at 1 July 565,000 -
Additions during the year -- 565,000
Cost as at 30 June 565,000 565,000
Amortization:
Accumulated amortization as at | July 47,085 -~
Charge for the year 23 141,250 47,085
Accumulated amortization as at 30 June 188,335 47,085
Net book value as at 30 June 376.665 517,915
Useful life (in years) 4 4

5.2

The amortization charge for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses.
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STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw materials
Work-in-process
Finished goods

Provision for dead stock
ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good
Advance to suppliers
Advance to staff

Advance income tax - Net

Income tax refundable

Advance sales tax - Net

7.1

7.1  Advances to staff represent advance for business related expenses and is interest free.

DEPOSITS, ADVANCES AND SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS

Margin deposits

Trade deposits

Advance against letter of credit
Short term prepayments

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand
Factory imprest
Cash at banks - Current accounts

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL

578,000 (2021: 578,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs.10/- each fully paid in cash
172,000 (2021: 172,000) Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/-
each issued for consideration (property) other than cash
7.250,000 (2021: 7,250,000) Ordinary shares
of Rs. 10/- each issued as fully paid bonus shares

2022 2021
(Rupees) ——--—-
239,350,710 218,203,666
40,472,042 24,833,837
18,913,836 19,547,522
298,736,588 262,585,025
- (116,725)

208.736.588 262,468,300
4,163,495 2,182,617
258,538 540,738
25.557.966 24,850,137
65,088,870 72,007,424
23,169,074 7,801,963
118.237.943 107.382.879
13,744,700 2,302,700
1,124,418 224418

3,409,635 -
166,696 134,706

18.445.449 2.661.824

802,858 70,000
100,000 100.000
5.238,706 4,559.141
6.141.564 4,729,141
5,780,000 5,780,000
1,720,000 1,720,000
72,500,000 72,500,000
£0.000.000 80,000,000

10.1  As at year-end 907,004 (2021: 907,004) ordinary shares of the Company are held by an associated undertaking

M/s. Management & Enterprises (Private) Limited.
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2022 2021
(Rupees)
11  SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Gross surplus
Opening balance 521,530,913 526,525,729
Release on disposal of revalued assets (641,197) (470,829)
Transfer to un-appropriated profit in respect of
incremental depreciation charged during the current year (3.866,948) (4,523,987)
517,022,768 521,530,913
Deferred tax liability
Opening balance {10,939.414) (12,387,912)
Tax effect on disposal of revalued assets 185,947 136,540
On incremental depreciation for the year 1,121,415 1,311,958
(9,632,052) (10,939.414)
507,390,716 510,591,499

11.1 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and is not available for distribution
to the shareholders of the Company in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY - Net

Deferred tax liability arising due to:

- accelerated tax depreciation 39,489,180 39,065,755
- surplus on revaluation of fixed assets 9,632,052 10,939.414
49,121,232 50,005,169
Deferred tax asset arising due to:
- provision against gratuity (5,581,825) (5.140,734)
- provisions for stock in trade -- (33,850)
- long term loan 2,095,884 -
- deferred grant (2,095,884) (2,800,127)
(5,581,825) (7.974,711)
12.1 43,539,407 42,030,458

12.1 Movement of deferred tax liabilities

Balance as at beginning of the year 42,030,458 35,432,845
Tax charge recognised in statement of profit or loss 1,590,921 6,837,197
Tax charge recognised in other comprehensive income (81,972) (239,584)
Balance as at end of the year 43,539,407 42,030,458

13 DEFERRED LIABILITY FOR STAFF GRATUITY

Present value of defined benefit obligations 13.1 19,247.674 17,726,668

The actuarial valuation of gratuity plan was carried out as at June 30, 2022 by M/s. SIR Consultants. Following are the
relevant disclosures:

13.1 Movement in net liability

Opening net liability 17.726,668 15,808,838
Expense for the year 13.2 2.968,006 2,659,455
Other comprehensive income (OCT) 13.3 282,662 826,151
Benefits paid (1,729,662) (1,567.776)
Closing net liability 19,247,674 17.726.668
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2022 2021
- (Rupees) ———-meeemeeeee
13.2 Expense for the year recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost 1,305,711 1,199,283
Net interest 1,662,295 1,256,815
Past service cost - 203,357
13.4 2,968,006 2,659,455
Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Actuarial remeasurements: actuarial gain on obligations 282,662 826,151
Expense for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales 22 2,029,279 1,818,317
Administrative expenses 23 649 957 582,388
Selling and distribution expenses 24 288,770 258,750
2,968,006 2,659,455
2022 2021
Principal actuarial assumptions used are as follows:
Valuation discount rate per annum 13.25% 10.00%
Discount rate for profit and loss 10.00% 8.50%
Expected rate of eligible salary increase in future years per annum 15.00% 12.00%
Salaries increase rate per annum 13.25% 10.00%
Normal retirement age 60 Years 60 Years
Duration 7.26 Years 7.71 Years
Withdrawal rate Moderate Moderate
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005
Effective salary increase date 01 July 2022 01 July 2021
Sensitivity analysis
(2022) (2021)
Particulars PVDBO Percentage PVDBO Percentage
(Rupees) change (Rupees) change
Current liability 19,247,674 17,726,668
+1% Discount rate 17,938,961 (6.80%) 16,499,754 (6.92%)
-1% Discount rate 20,733,575 7.72% 19,126,895 7.90%
+1 % Salary increase rate 20,808,217 8.11% 19,194,029 8.28%
-1% Salary increase rate 17.851.106 (7.26%) 16,419,772 (7.37%)
+10% Withdrawal rates 19,242,110 (0.03%) 17,717,589 (0.05%)
-10% Withdrawal rates 19,253,323 0.03% 17,735,884 0.05%
1 Year Mortality age set back 19,248,025 0.002% 17,727,095 0.002%
1 Year Mortality age set forward 19,247,322 (0.002%) 17,726,240 (0.002%)

PAKISTAN PAPER PRODUCTS LIMITED
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Undiscounted payments

2022 2021
(Rupees)
13.7 Maturity profile
Particulars
Year | 2,036,986 1,995,262
Year 2 1.716.807 1,462,118
Year 3 1,418,356 1,510,621
Year 4 3,606,506 1,173,678
Year 5 2,530,443 2,943,617
Year 6 to Year 10 14,559,215 7.547.,665
Year 11 and above 54,397,896 32,017,808
2022 2021
e (Rupees) --—--
13.8 Current and non-current liability breakup
Current liability the expected
benefits payable within next one year 2,150,144 1,600,942
Non-current liability 17,097,530 16,125,726
19.247.674 17,726,668
13.9 Ratios
Termination liability vs the actuarial liability
Termination liability 16,457,568 15,460,884
Actuarial liability 19.247.674 17,726,668
Ratio of discontinuance to actuarial 85.50% 87.22%
Service cost vs the actuarial liability
Service cost 1,420,854 1,284,853
Actuarial liability 19,247,674 17,726,668
Ratio of service cost to actuarial 7.38% 7.25%
Past service years 14.45 13.92

13.10 Risks associated with defined benefit plans

Longevity risk:
The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is measured at the plan
level over the entire retiree population,

Salary increase risk:
The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with final salary. The risk arises
when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal risk:
The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the benefit obligation.
The movement of the liability can go either way.
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2022 2021
(Rupees)
LONG TERM LOANS - Secured
Temporary economic refinance facility 14.1 46,234,497 50,310,399
Term finance under refinance scheme 14.2 - 7,870,464
Long term loan 14.3 61,218,000 -
107,452,497 58,180,863
14.1 Temporary economic refinance facility
At amortised cost
Opening balance 58,851,000 --
Acquired during the year -- 58,851,000
58,851,000 58,851,000
Deferred grant 16.1 (7,099.221) (8,540,601)
Current portion shown under current liabilities 17 (5,517,282) -
46,234 497 50,310,399
The Company has obtained loan under the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) "Temporary Economic Refinance
Facility' for purchase of imported plant and machinery. The facility carries mark-up at SBP refinance rate plus
3% per annum. The loan is to be repaid in ten vears including grace period of two years in thirty two equal
quarterly installments from the date of disbursement. In addition to the securities mentioned in note 14.3, the
facility is secured by way of specific hypothecation charge over imported machinery,
The loan is recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments. The benefit of the
below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for and presented as
deferred grant in accordance with TAS 20 - Government Grants (note 16).
14.2 Term finance under refinance scheme

At amortised cost

Opening balance 26,956,426 17.978,317
Acquired during the year - 17,963,584
26,956,426 35,941,901

Repayments during the year (17,970,951) {8,985.475)
B.985475 26,956,426

Deferred grant 16.2 (127,966) (1,115,011)
8,857,509 25,841,415

Current portion shown under current liabilities 17 (8,857,509) (17,970,951)
- 7.870.464

The Company has obtained loan under the State Bank of Pakistan's (SBP) 'Refinance Scheme for Payment of
Wages and Salaries to the Workers and Employees of Business Concern'. The facility carries mark-up at 3% per
annum. The loan is repayable in eight equal quarterly installments commencing from 01 January 2021,

The loan is recognised and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, The benefit of the
below-market rate of interest is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the loan
determined in accordance with IFRS 9 and the proceeds received. The benefit is accounted for and presented as
deferred grant in accordance with IAS 20 - Government Grants (note 16).
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2022 2021
-~ (Rupees) —-————m—av
14.3 Long term loan
Opening balance 13,319,900 28,795,950
Acquired during the year 81,624,000 -
94,943 900 28,795,950
Repayments during the year (17,401,100 (15.476.050)
77,542,800 13,319,900
Current portion shown under current liabilities 17 (16,324,800) (13,319,900}
61,218,000 -

The term finance facilities have been obtained from Bank Al-Habib Limited (BAH) for acquiring machineries.
The facilities carry mark-up at the rate of 6 months KIBOR plus 1.75% per annum (June 2021: 6 months KIBOR
plus 1.75% per annum) payable monthly installments. The facilities availed are re-payable in 60 equal monthly
instalments starting from the date of respective disbursements. These facilities are secured by way of first
specific hypothecation charge over imported machineries. Equitable mortgage over Industrial property bearing
no D/58, S.1.T.E., measuring 2.42 acres, Karachi and import documents consigned to BAH.

15 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSETS SUBJECT TO MUSHARAKAH FINANCING

Acquired during the year 13,680,000 -
Repayments during the year (1.920,000) -

11,760,000 -

Current portion shown under current liabilities 17 (2,880,000) -
8,880,000 -
15.1 It represents obligation in respect of assets acquired under musharakah arrangements from Meezan Bank Limited

(MBL) for a period of five years at an applicable rate of IFRE base rate plus 2% which have been used as a
discounting factor. Rentals are payable in monthly installments. Repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by
the Company. Overdue payments are subject to additional charge upto 20 percent per annum. The facility is
secured by way of first exclusive ownership of the asset in the name of MBL, personal guarantee of all directors
and pari Passu Charge amounting to Rs.18.66 million over Industrial Land bearing No. D/58, measuring 1.5
Acres, SITE.

16 DEFERRED GRANT

Temporary economic refinance facility 16.1 7,099,221 8,540,601
Loan under refinance scheme 16.2 127,966 1,115,011
16.3 7,227,187 9,655,612
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16.1

16.2

16.3

2022 2021
e (RUPEES) o
Loan under temporary economic refinance facility
Deferred grant on loan under refinance scheme 8.540,601 9,548,034
Amortised during the year (1,441,380) (1,007,433)
14.1 7,099,221 8,540,601
Loan under refinance scheme
Opening balance 1,115,011 1,481,229
Deferred grant on loan under refinance scheme - 1,300,421
1,115,011 2,781,650
Amortised during the period (987,045) (1,666,639)
14.2 127,966 1,115,011

This represents benefit of the below-market rate of interest calculated as the difference between the initial
carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received (note 14.1 and 14.2).

17 CURRENT PORTION SHOWN UNDER CURRENT LIABILITIES

18

Temporary economic refinance facility 14.1 5,517,282 -

Term finance under refinance scheme 14.2 8,857,509 17,970,951

Long term loan 14.3 16,324,800 13,319,900

Liabilities against assets subject to musharakah financing 15 2,880,000 -
33,579,591 31,290,851

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - Secured

Bank Al-Habib Limited - Running finance 163,316,050 91,452,605

The Company obtained running finance facility from Bank Al-Habib Limited up to Rs. 250 million (June 2021: Rs.150
million). The running finance facility carries mark-up of 3 months KIBOR plus 2% per annum.

The Company has other finance facilities from Bank Al-Habib Limited comprising Letter of Credit (Sight-Foreign) for
Rs.10 million (June 2021: Rs.10 million), Letter of Credit (Usance-Foreign) for Rs.10 million (June 2021: Rs.10
million), acceptance - Sub limit of LC sight foreign for Rs.10 million (June 2021: Rs.10 million) and Letter of Guarantee
for Rs.20 million (2021: Rs.20 million). These facilities carry mark-up as per bank's schedule of charges.

The above facilities are secured against registered hypothecation charge over receivables and movables of the Company
aggregating to Rs.154 million, import documents consigned in the name of Bank Al-Habib Limited in case of sight LC,
accepted drafis / trust receipts in case of usance LC, counter guarantee in case of LG's and equitable mortgage over
industrial property bearing No. D-57 and D-58, SITE, Karachi registered with SECP and a promissory note has been
issued in favour of Bank Al-Habib against short term running finance.
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19 CREDITORS, ACCRUED AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Trade creditors

Advance from customers

Accrued expenses and other payables
Payable to provident fund

Accrued mark-up

Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund

Sales tax payable

19.1

19.2

19.3

19.3

2022 2021
e (Rupees)

152,743,782 110,563,066
10,929,632 7,846,011
9,999,670 9,872,333
610,706 664,628
8,172,160 2,927,585
4,860,209 5,225,511
1,917,025 2,270,917
1,576,426 1.269,864
190,809,610 140,639915

Trade creditors include payable to an associated concern M/s. Sayeed International amounting to Rs.0.931

million (2021: Rs.0.242 million).

The investments by the provident fund in collective investment schemes, listed equity and debts securities have
been made in accordance with the conditions specified in section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and rules

specified thereunder.
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund

Balance at the beginning of the year
Amount allocated for the year

Amount adjusted / paid to the Fund Trustees
Amount deposited with government

20 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1

Commitments
Commitments under letter of credits

Post dated cheques issued in favour of
Collector of Customs Collectorate, Karachi

21 SALES - Net

Gross sales
Less: Sales tax

21.1

Segment wise breakup of net sales

Pro-labels

Exercise books
Ammonia paper

Plain paper

Printing

Sensitized machine parts
Waste paper

5,225,511
4,860,209
(4,997.000)

1,162,133
5,225,511
(1,162,133)

(228.511) -
4,860,209 5225511
78,958,284 69.988.122
402,590 402.590

1,365,459.810
(131,273,428)

1,224,654,635
(131,692,713)

1.234,186,382

1,092.961,922

749,706,746
461,069.876
8,701,918
13,929,112
10,000
69,000
699,730

752,341,312
317.874,630
12,069,508
10,007 885
8,000
96.067
564,520

1,234,186,382

1,092.961.922
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COST OF SALES

Opening stock of raw material
Purchases during the year

Closing stock of raw material
Raw materials consumed

Manufacturing overheads
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Stores and spares consumed
Depreciation
Fuel and power
Other manufacturing expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Insurance expenses
Rent, rates and taxes
Telephone charges

Manufacturing cost

Work in process - Opening

Work in process - Closing

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods - Opening
Finished goods - Closing

6

2022

(Rupees)

218,203,666
873,338,697

2021

164,726,667
780,428,558

1,091,542,363

(239.350,710)

945,155,225

(218,203.666)

852,191,653

726,951,559

96,024,393 80,051,113
40,405,733 39,994,628
33,424,424 34,242,674
14,879,953 15,034,577
10,940,656 6,900,679
9,837.435 6,204,205
1,883,524 1,592,398
223,590 193,779
222,848 159,025
207.842.556 184,373,078
1.060,034,209 911,324,637
24,833,837 39,512,097
(40,472,042) (24.833.837)
(15.638,205) 14.678.260
1.044,396,004 926,002.897
19,547,522 25,693,662
(18.913.836) (19,547,522)
633,686 6.146,140
1.045,029.690 932,149,037

22.1 Staff salaries and benefits include Rs.2.029 million (2021: Rs.1.818 million) in respect of staff retirement

gratuity and Rs.1.241 million (2021: Rs.1.598 million ) in respect of provident fund contribution.

22.2 Stores and spares consumed

Opening balance
Purchases during the year

Closing balance

5.548.216 6,732,240
43,299,826 38,810,604
48,848,042 45,542,844

(8,442,309) (5,548.216)
40,405,733 39,994,628
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23

2022 2021
(Rupees)

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits 23.1 24,565,970 19,824,275
Repairs and maintenance 2,631,346 2,079.889
Depreciation 4.2 2,610,345 1,191,527
Legal and professional fees 2,113,931 1.893.839
Electric charges 1,565,134 1,608,874
Traveling and conveyance 1,318,965 752,707
Charity and donation 23.2 1,100,000 900,000
Auditor's remuneration 233 770,000 770,000
Directors' fees 640,000 520,000
General expenses 569,742 1,239,833
Insurance expense 559,156 547,509
Postage and telegrams 441,756 481,103
Stationery and periodicals 284,921 255,295
Advertisement expenses 149,250 252,725
Amortization 5.2 141,250 47,085
Telephone charges 109,545 190,415
Rent, rates and taxes 121,497 80,344
Website designing and development - 22,222

39,692 808 32,657,642

23.1 Siafl salaries and benefits include Rs.0.650 million (2021: Rs.0.582 million) in respect of staff retirement
gratuity and Rs.0.846 million (2021: Rs.0.807 million ) in respect of provident fund contribution.

23.2 Charity and donation

Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal

(ABSA School and College for Deaf) 23.2.1 250,000 250,000
The Citizens Foundation 250,000 300,000
Rotary Metropolitan Trust 100,000 100,000
The Kidney Centre 500,000 250,000

1,100,000 900,000

23.2.1 Donations during the year include donation amounting to Rs.0.25 million (2021: Rs.0.25 million) to
Anjuman Behbood-e-Samat-e-Atfal (ABSA School and College of Deaf). Mrs. Muleika Sayeed a
Director of the Company is the Honorary Treasurer of ABSA School and College of Deaf. Except
above, none of the donations were made to any donee in which a director or his spouse had any
interest at any time during the year.

23.3  Auditor's remuneration

Audit of financial statements 632,500 632,500
Review of half-yearly financial statements 82,500 82,500
Review report on code of corporate governance 33,000 33,000
Provident fund audit fee 11,000 11,000
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund audit fee 11,000 11,000

770,000 770.000
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2022 2021
(Rupees) ———
24 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Staff salaries and benefits 24.1 7.999,583 7,261,257
Cartage and forwarding 5,201,759 3,056,272
Sales promotion 3,018,324 1,948,565
Depreciation 4.2 1,981,350 962,820
Vehicle running expenses 1,661,193 1,672,272
Utilities 747.444 541,228
Insurance expenses 435,929 401,143
Advertisement and publicity 378,144 312,880
Printing and stationery 39,867 2,780
Other expenses 4,000 92,930
21,467,593 16,252,147
24.1 Stafl salaries and benefits include Rs.0.289 million (2021: Rs.0.259 million) in respect of stafl retirement
gratuity and Rs.0.193 million (2021: Rs.0.234 million ) in respect of provident fund contribution.
25 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund 19.3 4,860,209 5,225,511
Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 1,917,025 2,270917
Advances written off 1,827,880 -
8,605,114 7,496,428
26 OTHER INCOME
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 927,731 120,012
Other income 177.401 919,042
Amortization of deferred government grant 2,428,425 2,674,072
Exchange gain - 4.863.307
3,533,557 8.576,433
27 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term loans 9,738.238 7,858,761
Mark-up on musharakah financing 502,075 --
Mark-up on short term running finance 9,320,365 7,657,172
Exchange loss 12,442 B35 -
Bank and other charges 494,272 453,382
32,497,785 15,969,315
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29

2022 2021
(Rupees)
TAXATION - Net
Current tax
For the year 26,921,926 19,625,051
For prior year 170,474 -
27,092,400 19,625,051
Deferred tax
Relating to the origination and
reversal of temporary differences 1,590,921 6,837,197
28,683,321 26,462,248
28.1 Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
Profit for the year 90,426,949 97,013,786
Tax on accounting profit (@ 29% (2021: @ 29%) 26,223,815 28,133,998
Difference between depreciation rates 1,005,013 1,501,836
Inadmissible expenses 2,910,381 1.336,037
Tax credits (319.000) 12,122,682
Tax effect of prior year 170,474 --
Tax effect of permanent differences (1,307,362) (4,248.623)
Tax credit of prior years - (12,383,682)
28,683,321 26,462,248
Average tax rate 32% 27%

28.2 Assessment for the tax year 2021 stands finalized as per section 120 of the Income Tax Ordinance, Proceedings
under section 161/205 for the tax year 2015 to 2020 are still pending wherein proceedings have been initiated.

EARNINGS PER SHARE - Basic and diluted

Profit after taxation 61,743,628 70.551,538

(Number of shares) --—--—-

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year 8,000,000 8.000,000

(Rupees) ———---—-m

Earnings per share - Basic and diluted 7.72 8.82

29.1 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at year end.
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2022 2021
-- (Rupees) -—- --
30 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 90,426,949 97,013,786
Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation 4.2 38,016,119 36,397,021
Amortization 5.2 141,250 47,085
Provision for gratuity 13.1 2,968,006 2,659,455
Provision for Sindh Workers' Profit Participation Fund 19.3 4,860,209 5225511
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 1,917,025 2,270,917
Government grant amortised - (2.674.072)
Advances written off 25 1.827.880 -
Finance cost 20,054,950 15,969,315
Exchange loss / (gain) 12,442,835 (4,863,307)
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 26 (927,731) (120,012)
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores and spares (2,894,093) 1,184,024
Stock-in-trade (36,268,288) (32.652,599)
Trade debts (44.414,207) 3,136,764
Advances and other receivables (17,065,789) 2,148,818
Deposits, advances and short term prepayments (15,783,625) 2,762,540
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Creditors, accrued and other liabilities 33,201,479 (80,728,156)
Cash generated from operations 88,502,969 47.777,090
31  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 6.141,564 4,729,141
Short term borrowings - Secured (163.316,050) (91,452.,605)
(157.174.486) (86.723.464)
32 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Chief Executive Exccutives Total
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
[ﬁupﬂ:s]
Fees = = 640,000 520,000 = 640,000 520,000
Managerial remuneration and allowances 3,894,155 3,295,500 1,404,617 - 5,298,772 3,295,500
Provident fund 274,620 274,620 109,246 = 383,866 274,620
Medical expenses 321,931 380,319 131,066 = 452,997 380,319
House rent 1,482,972 1,482,972 524274 - 2,007,246 1,482,972
Reimbursable expenses 1,281,780 1,259,363 — — 1,281,780 1,259,363
7,255,458 6,692,774 640,000 520,000 2,169,204 - 10,064,662 7,212,774
Number of persons ] 1 6 1 - 8 7
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33

34

The Chief Executive and certain employees of the Company are provided with Company maintained cars,

The Company has borne the telephone and utility charges of the Chief Executive's residence.

TRANSACTIONS WITH ASSOCIATED UNDERTAKINGS

The related parties and associated undertakings comprise local associated companies, stafl retirement funds, directors

and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties and associated undertakings, other than those which
have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, are as follows:

’ Relationship and percentage Transactions 2022 2021
NIk af the celatad pRety of shareholding during the vear (Rupees)
M/s. Sayeed International A director of the Company is  Purchases 1,815,548 765,648
the owner of the business. Sales 11,700 9.360
Pakistan Paper Products
Limited Employees'
Provident Fund Trust Employees Fund Contribution 5,495,510 5,277,424
2022 2021
(Numbers) -

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at 30 June 118 111
Number of factory employees as at 30 June 87 92
Average number of employees during the year 116 111
Average number of factory employees during the year 86 92

OPERATING SEGMENTS
Management monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with internal

reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Segment performance is generally evaluated based
on certain key performance indicators including business volume and gross profit.

Segment results include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis.

35.1 The management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are
used to make strategic and business decisions.

a) Exercise books

This segment relates to the sale of exercise books.
b) Pro-labels

This segment relates to the sale of pro-labels.
c) Sensitized paper and others

This segment relates to sensitized paper and others.
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Segment information

Eaurgise Hooks Profabels Ohbers Tutal
2022 2021 2022 2021 2013 2021 2022 021
AHupees} {Rupees) (Rupees) iRupees)

Seygrment revenue A6 ] 06 ETH I1TETA630 TG, TN, TG TR T 3,405, o 22,744, 9%0 1,234, 186,382 1.092.961.922
Cost of sales (37T9462.13%) 274,010,588 166,974,284} (H42.228.9M)) (IRSBR.273Y (15,909,519 (1.045,029,680) (932, 149.037)
Coross profin K1.607,743 A% K 142 102,727 462 1,1 12382 4 821,487 H.E36A01 189,156,082 1605 | RS
Segment expenves

Addninistrative expenses (IR, MAT, 304 (15270080 [18,847,295) (15611.4TT) (1,995 200)| 11,750,085)] %, 102, R0 ) (2,657,642

Selling and distribution expenses 112,608,422) (HANL A4 (6,226,912 LSV, TH0) 1L632.259)) (2003951 (16,252,147

Finptce cost (4,770, 08N (5896113 (26,76 1,027, (1LTAA660) (R (134,542 (15,969,315

Sindh Workes” Profit Partictpation Fund {LRES 6T LA, T 70 12,952,335) 3, 506,985) (92,187 I, FE0) (5.225.511))

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund A ThE, v Al 46K 1| L1 164 487 L1563, IKK) (36,562 (AT 260 2270917y

38,761,667} 129.813.551) (45,052 O6t) L7 922.0001) 15.719.087) 4.630.621) 1 100,4354200 (12395.530

Operating pratis A2 ¥44.078 14,050,191 46,775,396 72,190,322 RN, 2000 2,106,840 8721272 R 457353
ther aperating expenses 1LR27,850) -
Onher income 3,530,587 RATHA0
Profit before maathon W A20, 949 97,013,768
Tusation - Net (28,653 321) (26,462, 24%)
Prafin after taxntlon 61,743,628 T0851. 834

Segment-wise assets and liabilities are not being reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker. All non-
current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located in Pakistan.

Revenue from Unilever Pakistan Limited represents 12.36% (2021: 14.63%) of the total revenue of the
Company,

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

36.1

Financial risk management
Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from
- Credit risk
E Liquidity risk
- Market risk

This note presents information about the Company's exposure to each of the above risks, the Company's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company's management of capital.

Risk management framework

The Company's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company'’s risk management framework. The Board of Directors is responsible for developing and monitoring
the Company’s risk management policies.

The Company's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of sharcholders value. The Company’s
risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risk faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and
systems arc reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company’s activities. The
Company aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by
the Company.
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36.2 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration of
credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar
economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity
of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

Exposure to credit risk

In summary, the maximum exposure to credit risk as at 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021 was as follows:

2022 2021
Financial Maximum Financial Maximum
assets exposure assets exposure
(Rupees) ———————— == (Rupees)

Long term deposits 1,135,258 1,135,258 957,258 957,258
Trade debts 255865910 255,865,910 211,451,703 211,451,703
Advances and other receivables 4,422,033 4,422,033 2,723,355 2,723,355
Deposits and advances 18,278,753 18,278,753 2,527,118 2,527,118
Cash and bank balances (excluding cash in hand) 5,238,706 5,238,706 4,559,141 4,559,141
284,940,660 284,940,660 222,218,575 222,218,575

Trade debts

The Company evaluates customer's credit worthiness with reference to their historical performance and market
reputation,

The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of’
trade debts. At 30 June, the ageing of trade debts was as follows:

2022 2021
Gross Impairment IrOSS Impairment
— -— (Rupees) ————ee—— ——————— (Rupees) ———
Neither past due nor impaired - - - -
Past due 0-30 days 161,292,154 - 145,228,376 --
Past due 31-60 days 60,290,696 - 38,570,259 -
Past due 61-90 days 28,056,536 - 15.346.062 -
Past due 91-120 days 795,196 - 9,202,777 -
Past due more than 120 days 5,431,328 - 3,104,229 -
255,865,910 — 211,451,703 -

Based on past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and other recoveries, the
management believes that trade debts past due do not require any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks, which are rated as follows:

Name of banks Nashg Rating

agency Short term Long term
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA
National Bank of Pakistan PACRA Al+ AAA
Habib Bank Limited VIS A-1+ AAA

None of the financial assets of the Company are secured.
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
to the Company’s reputation.

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected cash
outflows on financial liabilities by continuous monitoring of forecast and actual cash outflows. The Company
also monitors the level of expected cash inflows on trade and other receivables together with expected cash
outflows on trade and other payables.

Exposure to liquidity risk

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts
are gross and undiscounted and include estimated interest payments.

Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve One to Two to
AOOHNTS cash Mows or less monihs IWo Vears five years
022
Non-derivative | Hiabili
Long term loans - Secured 138,152,088 190,244,458 26,910,650 36,993,231 64,442,524 61,898,053
Liabilities against assets subject 1o musharka financing 11,760,000 11,760,000 1,440,000 2,880,000 5,760,000 | 6H0,000
Unelaimed dividend 10,036,413 10,036,413 10,036,413 - - -
Creditors, acerued and other liabilities 176,386,527 176,386,527 176,386,527 - - -
Short term borrowings 163,316,050 163,316,050 163,316,050 — - -
390,651,078 331,743 440 FTR, 080,630 T0,R7 3,391 70,202,534 63,578,053
Carrying Contractual Six months Six to twelve One o Two to
cash Mows or less h two years Mive years
w2
Non-derivative financial labilities
Long 1erm loans - Secured BO.4T1. 714 116,298 941 18,525,393 29216865 19,879,207 48,677.476
Unelaimed dividend 8.439.427 8,439,427 5439427 - - -
Creditors, acerued and other linbilities 129,253,123 129,253,123 129,253,123 - - -
Short term borrowings 91,452,605 91,452,605 91.452.608 — — —
J18.616,869 345 444,096 247,670,548 29,216,865 19,879,207 48677470

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity
prices will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while
optimizing the return.

36.4.1 Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables
and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk on purchases that are denominated in a currency
other than Pak Rupees (PKR). As the Company import certain raw material, accordingly it is
exposed to currency risk, primarily with respect to trade creditors denominated in foreign currencies.
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Exposure to currency risk

The summary of the quantitative data about the Company's exposure to foreign currency risk is as

follows:
2022 2021
Spot rate as at 30 June EUR 215.75 -
Trade creditors EUR 340 -
Spot rate as at 30 June USD 206.00 158.80
Trade creditors USD 280,916 349,127
Spot rate as at 30 June AED - 43.27
Trade creditors AED -- 68,425
Trade creditors Rupees 57,942,008 58,402,170

Sensitivity analysis

A five percent strengthening / (weakening) of the Rupee against foreign currency as at 30 June 2022
would have increased / (decreased) equity and profit and loss account by Rs. 2.897 million (2021:
Rs.2.920 million). This analysis assumes that all other wvariables, in particular interest rates,
remaining constant.

36.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's interest-bearing financial instruments
was:

2022 2021
------------- (Rupees) ——-—--—-————-
Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Long term loans 67,836,475 85,807,426
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Long term loans 77,542,800 13,319,900
Liabilities against assets subject to musharakah financing 11,760,000 -
Short term borrowings 163,316,050 91,452,605
252,618,850 104,772,505

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The impact of change in fair value due to a change in interest rate is not considered to be material to
these financial statements.
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Cash flows sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the end of the reporting period would have increased
/ (decreased) equity by Rs.2.526 million (2021: Rs.1.048 million). This analysis assumes that all
other variables remain constant.

36.4.3 Equity price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices, whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual instrument or its
issuer or factors affecting all instruments traded in the market.

The Company does not have investments in listed equity securities and is not exposed to market
price risk.

36.5 Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The carrying value of all the financial instruments reported in the financial statements approximates their fair
value as the items are short term in nature.

The table below analyses financial instrument carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels
have been defined as follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or the
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

The Company does not hold any such financial instrument in its portfolio that falls in the above criteria.
CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Board's policy is to maintain an efficient capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain the future development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital employed, which
the company defines as operating income divided by total capital employed. The Board of Directors also monitors the
level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

The Company's objectives when managing capital are:

(i) to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

(i) to provide adequate return.
The Company manages the capital structure in the context of economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends

paid to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

Neither there were any changes in the Company's approach to capital management during the year nor the Company is
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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38 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION

i Capacity Production
g 3022 | 2020 2022 | 2001 T
a) Exercise books  Groose 58.632 58.632 59,455 45,225  Due to extra shifis.
b) Sensitized paper Rolls 216.000 216,000 8,941 17.875  Due to lack of demand.
¢) Prolabels Sq. Mater 4,000,000 3,500,000 5,591,118  6,229.624  Due to extra shifis.

38.1 The capacity is determined on single shift basis.
39 IMPACT OF COVID 19 ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The spread of Covid - 19 as a pandemic and consequently imposition of lock down by Federal and Provincial
Governments of Pakistan (Authorities) caused an overall economic slow down and disruption to various businesses.
However, as a result of steps taken by the Authorities, the businesses have substantially resumed with corresponding
positive impact on demand of paper products. Management will continue to monitor the potential impact and will take all
steps possible to mitigate any effects.

40 CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified for the purpose of comparison and better presentation,
However, there were no significant restatements or reclassifications.

41 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements have been authorised for issue on21% September 2022 by the Board of Directors of the
42 GENERAL

This financial statements is presented in rupees and figures have been rounded off to nearest rupee.

o Hinghgr

ABBAS SAYEED ZIA UR REHMAN ABID SAYEED
Chairman Chief Financial Officer Chief Excecutive
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Pattern Of Share Holding - Form "34"

Shareholders Statistics As At June 30, 2022

Number Of Share Holding Total Shares o%
Share Holders From To Held
268 1 - 100 7,638 0.10
199 101 - 500 60,588 0.76
107 501 - 1000 80,496 1.01
177 1001 - 5000 372,668 4.66
28 5001 - 10000 199,316 2.49
10 10001 - 15000 112,532 1.41
3 15001 - 20000 53,344 0.67
2 20001 - 25000 46,735 0.58
3 25001 - 30000 79,971 1.00
1 30001 - 35000 33,500 0.42
2 35001 - 40000 72,571 0.91
1 40001 - 45000 42,657 0.53
2 45001 - 50000 99,057 1.24
1 55001 - 60000 56,516 0.71
3 110001 - 115000 339,331 4.24
1 130001 - 135000 130,833 1.64
2 135001 - 140000 275,200 3.44
1 155001 - 160000 159,333 1.99
1 185001 B 190000 190,000 2.38
1 235001 - 240000 238,666 2.98
1 245001 - 250000 248,622 3.11
1 265001 - 270000 268,512 3.36
1 415001 - 420000 417,334 5.22
1 500001 - 505000 502,161 6.28
1 610001 - 615000 613,057 7.66
1 615001 - 620000 619,101 7.74
1 765001 - 770000 768,961 9.61
1 905001 - 910000 907,026 11.34
3 E 1000001 - 10